LOWER LODGE AND GATES
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The Lower Lodge of Penllergare lies on the western side of the main drive approximately 130m north of the drive’s entrance in Cadle village. John Dillwyn Llewelyn constructed it in c. 1833 in conjunction with the drive as part of his estate improvements. The architect was Edward Haycock. Lower Lodge, along with other buildings designed by Haycock, provided a strong architectural signature for the Penllergare Estate. Currently no early image of the lodge has been identified, although there is a photograph probably of early 20th century date. Fortunately the building survives, albeit in a much altered condition. The original two-storey structure was built of coursed stone and had a hexagonal shaped, south projecting wing – a feature common to gatehouses and lodges. Carved stone square-headed window and door label moulds are a distinctive element. All the windows have been replaced by modern designs, and the roof is now of concrete tile. A stone-built extension has been added to the west side. Although modern, this extension contains reused architectural fragments possibly from this lodge or from one of the other demolished lodges. 

The gates, which lay immediately to the north of the lodge, have been entirely removed and replaced by a modern utilitarian steel barrier. A photograph by John Dillwyn Llewelyn of c. 1852 four stone piers each capped with ?heraldic sculpture separating a central carriage gate from two side pedestrian gates. 

Sources: Ordnance Survey 1:2500 maps 1877, 1898, 1916 and 1936; Ordnance Survey 2” to 1 mile surveyors’ sketch map, 1813; R Morris 1999, Penllergare A Victorian Paradise
